©
®Wa5te

MINUTES

SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
September 12, 2012 - 2:00 p.m.

San Carlos Library Conference Room A/B

1.

Call to Order at 2:06 PM

Roll Call
Agency Present | Absent | Agency Present | Absent
Atherton X Menlo Park X
Belmont X Redwood City X
Burlingame X San Carlos X
East Palo Alto X (open San Mateo X
session)
Foster City X County of San Mateo X
Hillsborough X West Bay Sanitary District X

Adjourn to Closed Session - pursuant to Government Code Section Govt. Code Sec. 54957.6: Conference with
Labor Negotiator: Unrepresented employees- (All employees); pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(A):
Conference with Legal Counsel - anticipated litigation — one case; pursuant to Government Code Section 54957:
Public Employee Performance Evaluation: Executive Director.

Open Session Called to order at 3:31 PM

Report from Closed Session

None

Public Comment
Persons wishing to address the Board on matters NOT on the posted agenda may do so.

Each speaker is limited to two minutes. If there are more than five individuals wishing to speak during public comment, the Chairman will draw five speaker cards from those
submitted to speak during this time. The balance of the Public Comment speakers will be called upon at the end of the Board Meeting.

If the item you are speaking on is not listed on the agenda, please be advised that the Board may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed as allowed under
The Brown Act (Government Code Section 54954.2). The Board's general policy is to refer items to staff for attention, or have a matter placed on a future Board agenda for a
more comprehensive action or report and formal public discussion and input at that time.

None

Approval of Consent Calendar:

Consent Calendar item(s) are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these items unless members of the Board,
staff or public request specific items be removed for separate action. Iltems removed from the Consent Calendar will be moved to the end of the agenda for separate
discussion.

A. Adopt the July 26, 2012 BOD Meeting Minutes
B. Adopt the August 22, 2012 Special BOD Minutes




Motion/Second: Nava/Jones
Voice Vote: All in Favor

New Business:
A. Resolution Adopting FY 2013 Budget

Executive Director McCarthy commented that this was the 31 version of the FY2013 budget presented to the
Board. He noted that the main difference between the budget presented in June and this budget is that the
Agency’s net income has dropped substantially due to a drop in commodity revenue. There are some serious
implications to the drop in netincome. First, the Agency won’t meet Board approved cash reserve levels. He noted
that the Board created a subcommittee in June to address this issue. Secondly, the Agency is at risk of not meeting
the bond covenant requirements. Currently we are projecting we will be right at the 1.4 number required. He also
added that this budget has an additional $90,000 worth of cuts, and that it is 10% lower than last year's budget.

Member Masbad asked if there was any mention of the debt coverage test in the staff report, and does the
projection meet the 1.4 test.

Executive Director McCarthy stated yes the discussion is on page 4, and we are closely watching the 1.4 test.

Member Fotu asked for an explanation as to why the commodity revenues had dropped so low over the last few
quarters, and also where our fiber is sold.

Executive Director McCarthy stated that the commodity revenue drop is due to the European recession, there is
less demand for product, and because there is less worldwide demand for products, there is less demand for boxes
to put the product in. He added that almost all of the fiber sold worldwide goes to China; there is an oversupply of
recycled fiber so the price has gone down. He also added that Dan Domonoske from SBR believes the prices will
get a bit better by the end of the year.

Member Masbad expressed appreciation to staff for making efforts to cut the budget, and noted that these efforts
will help address the increased tipping fee issue. She asked why there is such a big increase between FY 10/11
and 11/12, and why there is such a big increase in the mid-year projection. She added that she knows there was
an increase in tonnage, but it was small change and wondered if there was any other reason for the increase.
Executive Director McCarthy answered that in the budget documents there is greater than projected franchised
tons, compared to what we originally projected. He noted the difference between volume and tonnage, stating that
volumes have dropped less than we expected which is causing higher projected tons.

Member Masbad asked for further clarification after the Board meeting.

Vice Chair Nava asked for further description of the staff changes to the budget.

Executive Director McCarthy stated that the changes are listed on attachment C of the staff report.

Vice Chair Nava asked how much more staff resources will the Education Center take in the future.

Executive Director McCarthy stated that two people are needed to run the Education Center. This is similar to the
industry standard, and he sees it as staying static.

Member Scott added that he’s not sure he agrees with the Agency’s role in providing education but is willing to
support the budget.

Member Masbad clarified if the Agency is allowed to do a cash transfer on the debt service coverage.




Staff Moran answered yes provided there is money to transfer.

Vice Chair Nava asked if we adopt the budget it assumes an increase in tip fees, he asked how a change in tip fees
affects our budget.

Executive Director answered that a $1 change in the franchise solid waste rate equals approximately $300,000 in
the budget.

Member Moura made a motion to adopt the budget that staff proposed.
Member Jones seconded the motion.
Roll Call Vote:

Motion passes: 11-0-0-1

Agency Yes | No | Abstain | Absent | Agency Yes | No | Abstain | Absent
Atherton X Menlo Park X
Belmont X Redwood City X
Burlingame X San Carlos X
EastPaloAlto | X San Mateo X
Foster City X County of San Mateo X
Hillsborough X West Bay Sanitary District | X

C. Discussion on Draft 2013 Rate Reports for Recology San Mateo County and South Bay Recycling

Executive Director McCarthy noted that this agenda item was an opportunity for the Board to provide feedback to
staff and the contractors on the rate reports.

Vice Chair Nava commented that he finds it extremely hard to do this work, and that it's hard to know what exactly
to look for. He noted that the Board has to rely on SBWMA staff, and needs to have a high degree of confidence in
that work. He added that anything in future years that can assist the Board in raising that level of confidence would
be appreciated.

Member Masbad gave positive feedback to the staff for satisfactory responses from SBWMA and Recology.

Member Fotu asked that there be an increase in working days to complete the rate review, and asked if there was a
prescribed way to project revenue.

Staff Moran answered that the revenue is broken down between residential and commercial, then the monthly
actual revenue billed through July is averaged, and then a projection is done for the rest of the year and into the
following year. That projection is based on 7 months average, but if there is anything strange in a given month then
that month is thrown out, and a 6 month average is used.

Executive Director McCarthy added that based on Board feedback what was different this year was staff gave you
the revenue and tonnage assumptions a month or more before the rate report went out. The point was to give
Agencies the data early, because there are so many layers that go into this report, staff has tried to get you some of
the important layers early so that that feedback could be included in the report. He also acknowledged that the
process is complicated, and staff has given the Agencies a lot of data, and more data can lead to more confusion.




Member Scott agreed with Member Fotu and expressed difficulty with the 10 day turn around.

Executive Director McCarthy acknowledged that it is a sprint for Recology to get it done in the time period allowed,
but noted that they are getting better at it and that staff would see if there is any way to free up sometime in the
schedule.

Mario Puccinelli noted that everyone understands the process and the contracts better, and that he thought the
product would improve next year.

Executive Director McCarthy added that what we don’t want to do every year is add a new variable to the rate
application. If we ask the company to start using April data instead of May data, it may create a variable if the data
is comparable so we want to watch this sort of tradeoff.

Chair Porter echoed that he would like to look at ways to expand the review period so it's not such a mad dash
moving forward.

Vice Chair Nava noted that we are getting to a place where the contracts will be indices based, and added that he
thought that should simplify the review process.

Chair Porter noted that each Agency will still have to verify the numbers, so he didn’t think the process would
change that much.

Executive Director McCarthy added that it won’t be a simple process, but it will be simpler.

Lillian Clark asked for clarity of where table numbers in the rate application came from. She asked for footnotes to
be added so that reference to other documents can be made, and that any supporting documents are included with
the rate application. She also asked that staff put together a workshop when the application is nearly out next year,
so that cost-drivers can be discussed ahead of time.

Vice Chair Nava asked if it was possible to get a list of indicators for each agency to help the Board members
explain the adjustment levels to their Councils, and asked if the Board would be approving the revenue requirement
at the next Board meeting.

Executive Director McCarthy stated that Appendix E is high level detail explaining the cost indicators, and that yes,
the September 27t Board meeting would be the Revenue Requirement vote.

Staff Moran added that at the next meeting the Board would be approving the rate application for Recology, the rate
application for SBR and one for the total.

Board Member Comments

None

Adjourn: 4:23 PM




